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GARRISON DAM — DECEMBER

15, 1945

CONGRESSIONAT, RECORD—SENATE

The next amendment was, unde
subhead “Flood control,” on page 56I,‘ l?x}::
24, after the numerals “1946”, to strike
out' “$81,759,000” and insert “$84,259,-
000”; and in line 23, after the word “ex-
pended”, tp strike out “Provided, That no
part of this appropriation shall be avail-
able for constructing the Garrison (North
Dal_(ota) Reservoir beyond dimensions
whxch. would provide for a higher pool
elevat;on than 1,830 feet or for construct-
ing dikes or levees which would provide
for a higher pool elevation than 1,830 feet
fqr operating such dam” and insert “Pro-
vided, That no part of the appropriation
for theﬂumm;gr_volr herein con-
tained may be expended for actual con-
struction of the dam itself until suitable

land found by the Secretary of the In-
terior to be equal in quality and sufficient
in area to compensate the Three Affili-
ated, Tribes shall be offered to the said
tribes in exchange for the land on the
f;?lfrtl ?etx:éloid Rteﬁervatton which shall be
a e
o axi." construction of the

Mr. BYRD. Mr. President, I
like to ask the Senator from Te'nne:?:eu:g
read a list of those projects.

Mr. McKELLAR. There are uity
humber of them. Would the Sengtoreb:
Eztggggd to h{a,dveh them placed in the

, or would the Se
g nator rather have

Mr. BYRD. It would be ver -
esting to have them read to the Sirfgtt;r

Mr. MCKELLAR. There is g page or
morg of them, and I shall put them in

the REcorp, if the Senator does not ob-
ject.

At this point, Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent to place in the RECORD
a list of the several projects, as set forth
on pages 11232 and 11233 of the Con-
GRESSIONAL RECORD of November 27, 1945.

There being no objection, the list was
ordered to be printed in the RECORD, as
follows:

Data on flood-control reservoirs, including
power-generating facilities

The supplemental estimates include 56
reservoir projects, of which the following 13
reservoirsinclude power-generating facilities:

Initial
power
installa-
tion
(kile-
watts)

Total
estimated
Federal
cost of
project

Esti-
mated
cost of
power
features

Project

Buggs Island Reservoir, l
Va.andN.C_________. $30, 900,000, 83, 500 $5, 660, 000
Clark Hill Reservoir,

Ga.and 8. C________ 35,300, 000{ 160,006/11, 005,000
Allatoona Reservoir, Ga_| 17,400,000/ 66,000/ 3, 220,000
Narrows Reservoir, Ark_| 6,470,000 17,000| 1,253,000
Blakely Mountain Res-

ervoir, Ark________ ~.| 11,080,000! 42,000 2, 647, 000
Norfork Reservoir, Ark_.| 27,500,000 70,600/ 4,676,000

Bull Shoals Reservoir,
U AR 47,000, 000] 126,000, 6,171,000

Denison Reservoir, Tex.
-.--| 59,315,000

and Okla i
_| 21, 435,000

70,000| 8,094, 000

,Okla___ : 45,000/ 6, 914,000
Garrison i -
N.Dak________________{130,000,000| 80,000/ 5,900,000
Wolf Creek Reservoir,

o SR AP 52,000,000 135,000] 9, 522, 000
Dale Hollow Reservoir,

Tenn.and Ky_..._._.. 22,739,000{ 36,000 5,075,000
Center Hill Reservoir,

Tonn. .oy 25, 400,000/ 90,000, 6, 200,000

Nore.—Based on power market studies made by the
Federal Power Commission there is need for power at all
of these projects.

v & aal sish

_GURNEY. Mr. .P1e51dent, I wisl

' toNsI;y that contained.m the $8§gggggg

appropriatton is an item of $2, ;aof

which is appropriated for @he purgosﬁrst
actually starting construction of the

of the large Missouri River dams au-
thorized in the Flood Control Act of
1244. The money will not be used for
the pouring of concrete, but to get ready
to pour concrete. This appropriation is
not the first one. The first one was, of
course, for engineering services; and
other appropriations to the Bureau of
Reclamation have been made for the
dam known as the Garrison Dam, in
North Dakota, and forsomreoT THé dams
in my own State of South Dakota.
Those appropriations have been used for
preliminary engineering services, on the
part both of the Army engineers and the
Bureau of Reclamation. So this $2,000,-
000 appropriation will provide for the
commencement of construction.

We have had much information on
the floor of the Senate and in committee
about the total cest of these worth-while
flood-control-irrigation dams. I am
sure that with this start of construction
at the Garrison Dam there will be a sub-
sequent request by the Army engineers
for a larger amount of funds in the reg-
ular appropriation bill which will come
befcre the Congress next spring. I agree
with the Senator from Arkansas when
he says that these projects are worth
while. They certainly are worth the
money which Uncle Sam spends on
them; and we who live in the Dakotas
and, I am sure, the people in other
States along the Missouri River deeply
appreciate the support which the Con-
gress has given by passing the authoriza-
tion measures. We express our thanks
now for making a beginning by provid-
ing funds in accordance with the requests
which have come from the Army engi-
neers and the Bureau of Reclamation at
this time.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on agreeing to the amend-
ment on page 56, in line 24.

The amendment was agreéd to.

Mr. YOUNG. Mr. President, I should
like to add a word to what has been said
by the able Senator from South Dakota.
This project in North Dakota—the Gar-
rison dam and resultant irrigatiormr=—will
not merely provide jobs during the perioc
foltlowing the war, especially jobs for
servicemen, but it will stabilize the en-
tire agriculture of North Dakota. That
section of the United States is subject to
periodical droughts which have occurred
throughout our history. In 1934 there
was an extremely serious drought which
forced our people to sell most of their
livestock. If at that time we had had an
irrigation project similar to the one pro-
vided for by the item which has been
under discussion here, our people could
have produced enough forage to enable
them to keep their herds, and thus it
would not have been necessary for so
many of our people to go on relief.
Shortly after the 1934 drought, 53 percent
of the people of North Dakota were on
relief. Following that time, during the

war we were able to pay off most of the
feed and seed loans, at 5-percent interest
while ranking first of all States in reach-
ing our E-bond quotas in four bond
drives, and we produced more than g bil-
lion bushels of small grain and potatoes
and nearly 10,000,000 head of livestock.

Once again we were able to stabilize our

agricultural operations. That extreme
variation would not have occurred at all

u_! we.had had available irrigation facili=
ties similar to the ones which the appro-
priation under discussion provides, and
would also provide for the generation of

vast amounts of cheap electricity so

sorely needed by the farmers of
Dakota. —_

» - ” ) A -

/  Mr. O'MAHONEY. Mr. President, in

connection with the Garrison Reservoir

I ask unanimous consent to nave print-

ed in the REcorp at this point pages 301

tQ.308, both inclusive, and pages 336 to

338 clusive, from the h
on this item which is intended for the

protection of the Three Affiliated Tribes

on the Fort Berthold Reservation.

There being no objection, the matter
referred to was ordered to be printed in
the RECORD, as follows:

TESTIMONY BEFORE SENATE INDIAN AFFAIRS
COMMITTEE ON POSITION OF INDIANS ON GAR-
RISON RESERVATION PROJECT
Senator O’'MaHONEY. Mr, Chairman, may

I make a brief statement supplementing

what I said a little while ago?

Senator McKeLLAR. Certainly, Senator.

Senator O’'MAHONEY. I have here a brief
statement of what occurred before the Com-
mittee on Indian Affairs. It appears from
the testimony of Mr. Martin T, Cross, a mem-
ber of the Gros Ventre Tribe, and chairman
of the Tribal Business Council of the Three
Affiliated Tribes, which are the Arikara, Man-
dan, and Gros Ventre Tribes.

Mr. Cross testified that there are in this
reservation approximately €00,000 acres of

land, of which 221,000 acres would be flooded
by the Garrison Dam.

In response to a question which I ad-
dressed to Mr. Cross with respect to where
the Indians lived, he told me that they have
about 500 homes on the reservation, and
that of those 500 homes 437 would be in-
undated. a

The chairman of this commiteee remem-.
bers very well the state of mind of the people
in a historig-towasin Tennessee, yih;n-a da“:a
% 'o be constructed by the Tennesse
:rl':ls!e; Authority, which would have flooded
out an area in which they lived and a ceme-
tery in which they buried their dead. The
Senator from Tennessee and the people from
this town yielded finally only on the per-
suasion that the construction of that dam
was essential to the prosecution of thg war.

Senator MCKYLLAR, That is the only_v; thing
in the world that brought it about. :

Senator O'MAHONEY. The feeling of the
people in this town was akin to the feeling
that is expressed by these Indians.

Now, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Martin Fox de-
clared in that hearing—and I am quoting Mr.

Fo"“‘z.'ears ago, back in 1851, the United States
commissioned a number of men to come up
and meet us at Fort Laramie, Wyo. We had
representatives there and we drew up obliga-
tions and agreements and declarations be-
tween the United States Government and
ourelves. Those agreements and declarations
and t-eaties are still binding with us.\
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“If there is anything that needs to be
amended or needs to be modified in those
agreements, it is the people themselves—the
soldiers—who should remedy this, if any-
thing comes up.' Violations of the treaty
have been made, not by this group of men,
but by the War Departgment, and I wonder
if the War Department,” and I am quoting,
General Wheeler.

General WHEELER. All right.

Senator O’MAHONEY. All right.

“I wonder if the War Department is not a
little touched in the head.”

That is what the Indian said.

He sald further:

“All the original declarations and treaties
were made between the military personnel
and the Indians. I maintain that they are
still binding, and I am opposed to this plan.”

STUDY OF STATUS OF INDIAN-TREATY .OBLIGATIONS

The chairman of the committee then called
upon the Assistant Solicitor of the Depart-
ment of the Interior, who was there repre-
senting the Bureau of Indian Affairs, to sub-
mit a memorandum to the commitee on the
status of the treaty obligations; not having
had the opportunity to examine the treaty,
the members of the committee felt that it
would be well to have a summary of that
kind.

T do not intend to make this summary a
part of the record, Mr. Chairman, but let
me say briefly that it tells this story. That
treaties were made with those Indians as far
back as 1825, in which the United States
recognized this general area as the country
of the Indians. To quote the Acting
Solicitor:
" ;‘T;e;:tletshma;de with the tribes in 1825 re-
erred to the lands which the
‘their country.’” Y

It was also provided that the Indians
agreed to “give safe conduct to all persons
who may be legally authorized by the United
States to pass through their country.”

Now, the boundaries of what was thus re-
ferred to as “their country” embraced lands
concerning which we are talking about today.
It was a large territory which involved mil-
lions of acres of land—about 10,000,000 acres,
all told. ’

There were Executive orders, and I find that
these Executive orders were not the product
of the New Deal, but this language on these
orders was employed many years before, in
reference to the Indians,

And by, an Executive order auted August
8, 1868, vne dated April 12, 1870, and one
dated July 13, 1880——

Senator OVERTON. That was all under Re-
publican administrations?

Senator O’'MaHONEY. I think so.

SUIT BY INDIANS OF NORTH DAKOTA AGAINST THE
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

The interpretation of the order was strict.
The lands given to the Indians were dimin-
ished by some .9,846,186.93 acres of land.

Senator GURNEY. That is when the Indians
of North Dakota filed a suit against the
Government.

Senator O’'MAHONEY. Yes; the Indians filed
a suit, and Congress authorized them to do
it, in the Court of Claims, on the theory that
they had been damaged by the taking away
of their land, and he Court of Claims held
that the Indians were entitled to get back
the value of the 9,846,186.93 acres of land.

Senator OVERTON. Why did not the Court
;)t g;alms allow them to take back their
an

CONGRESSIONAL RECORD—SENATE

JUDGMENT RENDERED BY COURT OF CLAIMS'

Senator O’'MAHONEY, Senator OVERTON, I do
not know, but it may be that thety did not
want to take it away from the South
Dakotans. The Court of Claims rendered a
judgment that the Indians were entitled to
recover the value of this land, to the extent
of $4,923,093.47. How they figured that 47
cents I do not know.

Now, in 1891 this question arose again, and
again the question of the titie of the Indians
to these lands was recognized when a treaty
was negotiated between the United States
and the Three Affiliated Tribes, providing for
the cession to the Federal Government of
certain lands not needed by the Indians, and
for which the Government was to pay the
Indians $800,000.

PROTECTION OF CERTAIN NONCEDED LANDS OF FORT
BERTHOLD RESERVATION

Now, when the result of this treaty was pro-
mulgated—and it was promulgated Ly Presi-
dent Benjamin Harrison—he said this:

“I particularly notify all persons to observe
that a certain portion of the said Fort Ber-
thold Reservation not ceded,” and that in-
cludes the 274,000 acres which would be
flooded by the Garrison Dam “not ceded and
relinquished by sald agreement, is reserved
for allotment to, and also as a reservation
for, the said tribe of Indians; and all persons
are, therefqre, hereby warned not to go upon
any of the lands so reserved, for any purpose
or with any intent whatsoever, as no settle-
ment or other right can be secured upon said
lands, and 2all persons found unlawfully
thereon will be dealt with as trespassers and
intruders.”

TREATY OF FORT LARAMIE WITH THE INDIANS

Now, in that famous treaty of Fort Lara-
mie, when the Indians agreed to give the right
of passage across their country, they author-
ized the United States to ‘“establish roads,
military and other posts”—and I am naw
quoting, Mr. Chairman, “to establish roads,
military and other posts, within fheir respec-
tive territories.” .

That treaty, Mr. Chairman, has been in
force, and it was a right that was .ranted by
the Indians to the Federal Government.

EFFECT OF CONSTRUCTION OF GARRISON DAM ON
INDIAN LANDS

- That, Mr. Chairman, in brief, is the story
which was told by the Indians to the Com-
mittee on Indian Affairs about the treaty
made at the Fort Laramie Reservation.

It seems to me to be clear that .when we
appropriate this money to build this .dam
we will be taking the land of these Indians,
and be subjected to another lawsuit, even
if we Insist upon disregarding the wishes of
the Indians not to be compelled to leave their
homes. There would be a very interesting
legal question here involving just what the
Indians could do to protect their rights.

They may sue the Chief of Engi -
eral Wheeler, or the Secretary?)g xvx::rr’sm(}::_
Join them from building the dam; or they
might wait until condemnation I voceedings
are instituted—and the Indians deny that
under the treaty we have any right to con-
geeemd:n—and tll::n. aftsr condemnation pro-
ngs are n, th
lexlxd tn:hat: in thegucourts?y ikt
ink it is my duty, as chairm
Committee on Indian yAﬂ’alrs, to l:‘;1 g:fzr;:
this committee the very serious question of
the alleged invasion of the rights of the In-
dians by the construction of this dam.

Senator LANGER. And
lands, it will flood their

S
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LANDS TO WHICH INDIANS WOULD BE MOVED

Senator O'MAHONEY. Oh, yes; they will
have to leave their homes, and they say
that the lands constitute the best portion of
the reservation; and they will be driven to
lands which are not as good grazing lands,
and they say that they could not go into any
other part of the Btate of North Dakota which
would be as good.

Mr. Chairman, Senator LANGER, who was
present at the hearings, calls my attention
to a colloquy which took place between my-
self and Mr. Bateman, a member of the tribal
business council, Fort Berthold Indian Reser~
vation. These questions were asked by
Senator LANGER of Mr. Bateman:

“Senator LANGER. How many acres of this
stuff will you have to have that they are try-
ing to give you, to make.a living?

“Mr. BATEMAN. Well, for may pert they
would have to give me the whcic piece to
make a living.

“Senator LANGER. In other - words, % is
rough land?

“Mr. BATEMAN. It is rough land.

“Senator LANGER. Buttes on it?

“Mr. BATEMAN. Yes, sir.

“Senator LANGER. Ravines?

“Mr. BATEMAN. Ravines,

“Senator LANGER. It is not fit for agricul-
tural purposes at all, is it?

“Mr. BATEMAN. No, sir.

“Senator LANGER. It would have to be used
entirely for grazing?

“Mr. BATEMAN. Grazing, mostly.

“Senator LANGER. And the land you have
now, you have very fine farms?

“Mr. BATEMAN. Yes, sir.

“Senator LANGER. You have places that are
level for miles and miles; is not that true?

“Mr. BATEMAN, Yes, sir. Grain will grow
in dry seasons.

“Senator LANGER. You have subsoil many
feet deep of fine chocolate-colored loam?

“Mr. BATEMAN. Yes, sir.”

Benator OveErTON. Mr. Chairman, I want to
ask a question.

Senator MCKELLAR. Very well.

Senator OVERTON. Are you opposed to the
appropriation?

Benator O’'MAHONEY. Not necessarily. This
hearing I referred to was held on October 9.

Senator OvErTON. Of what year?

Senator O'MAHONEY. Of 1945,

The counsel for the Bureau of Indian Af-
fairs was not prepared to give us at that
time the information with reference to the
Indian treaties, and I asked him for this
memorandum and I was under the impres-
sion that the memorandum was not yet re-
ceived, but after coming to the hearing room
this afternoon I telephoned to the Bureau of
Indian Affairs, and I-found that it had been
submitted. The Committee on Indian Af-
falrs, because of other pressing matters, like
hearings befdre the Committee on Finance,
and the Petroleum Committee, has not yet
given attention to this matter. I do not
want to speak for the committee, but I think
the committee does owe an obligation to
the Indians to consider this matter and to
make a recommendation. I shall endeavor
to do that before this matter now before us
is taken up.

In the meantime, let me insert in the rec-
ord here the memorandum submitted by Mr.

Cohen, the Acting Solicitor of the Depart-
ment of the Int rior, appearing on pages 20—
23 of the hearings held on October 9, 1945.

Senator QVERTON. That may be done.

That record reveals that whenever the Gov-
ernment wanted any of the lands, they took
it? :

Senator O'MAHONEY. Yes.

Senator OVERTON. And compensated them
for it?
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Mr, O'MAHONEY. The Indians are
the wards of the Government of the
United States. They are the benefici-
aries of a treaty. The United States to-
day stands before the world urging jus-
tice to all people. It seems to me it can-
not support a moral position upon that
issue unless it deals justly with its own
wards, the Indians of the United States.

Mr. YOUNG. I anr in entire accord
with the thinking of the Senator from
Wyoming.

The PRESIDING OFFICER, The next
amendment of the committee will be
stated.

December 15, 1945
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Senator O'MAHONEY. That is a conclusion
but not my statement of fact.

Senator OverToN. Thank you, Senator.

(The memorandum referred to is as fol-
lows:)

“MEMORANDUM SUBMITTED BY FELIX S. COHEN,
ACTING SOLICITOR, DEPARTMENT OF THE IN-
TERIOR G
“In response to the request of your com-

mittee, I am submitting this memorandum

supplementing my statement of October 9

and dealing specifically with: (1) The char-

acter of the title of land held by the Three

Affiliated Tribes of the Fort Berthold Reser-

vation; and (2) the legal means available to

the Indians for the possible protection of
such land.
“1. THE INQEAY TITLE

“The Three Afflliated Tribes of the Fort
Berthold Reservation, comprising the Arikara,
Mandan, and Gros Ventre (the last named are
also variously referred to as Hidatsa, Minne-
taree, or Balantse-Etoa), occupy an area in
whijch they have lived at least since the time
of the earliest white contacts with them
(Handbook of American Indians, Bureau of
American Ethnology, Bull. 30, pt. 1, p. 548).
Treaties made with the Three Tribes in 1825
referred to the lands which they occupied as
‘their country’ and provided that they would
‘give safe conduct to all persons who may be
legally authorized by the United States to
pass thrqugh their country.’! The bound-
arles of what was thus referred to as ‘their
country’ were first set forth in the Treaty of
Fort Laramie, September 17, 1851 (2 Kappler
594). Article 5 of that treaty provides, in

art:

- “‘The territory of the Gros Ventre, Man-

dans, and Arrickaras Nations, commencing at

the mouth of Heart River; thence up the Mig-
seuri River to the mouth of the Yellowstone

River; thence up the Yellowstone River to the

mouth of Powder River in a southeasterly

direction, to the headwaters of the Little Mis-
souri River; thence along the Black Hills to
the head of Heart River, and thence down

Heart River to the place of beginning.”

“By this treaty the signatory tribes recog-
nized ‘the right of the United States Govern-
ment to establish roads, military and other
posts, within their respective territories.’
No other easement or interest was granted to
the Federal Government by this treaty.

“Subsequently, by Executive orders dated
August 18, 1868, April 12, 1870, and July 13,
1880 (Kappler, vol. 1, p. 883), the territory of
these Indians, as originally set out in the Fort
Laramie Treaty, was diminished. The land
thus taken from the Indians was used in part
for governmental purposes and the remainder
was disposed of to railroads end individual
settlers. This diminution effected unilater-
ally was later held by the Court of Claims to
have been a violation of the possessory rights
of these Indians, and on the basis of this deci-
sion & judgment was awarded to these In-
dians in 1930. The Indians were held to be
entitled to recover the value of the 9,846,-
186.93 acres of land taken from them as of the
time of the taking, which amounted, at 50
cents per acre, to $4,923,093.47, less offsets for
past Federal expenditures amounting to

1 Treaty of July 18, 1825, with Ricara Tribe
(7 8tat. 269, art. §); treaty of July 30, 1825,
with Balantse-Etoa or Minnetaree Tribe (7
Stat. 261, art. 5); treaty of July 80, 1825, with
the Mandan Tribe (7 Stat. 264, art. b).

$2,753,024.89, leaving a net judgment in favor
of the Indians of $2,169,168.58.

“The Court of Claims found that the
Indians ‘had never given their consent to the
action taken under the authority of the Exec-
utive orders of 1870 and 1880 and noted their
objection when the facts became known to
them’ (at p. 327). Taking of lands from the
Indians, the Court of Claims found, was a
violation of the treaty. The treaty of 1851,
the court found, provided that—

“‘The territory of the Indians-was to be
delimited in accord with their claims and pro-
tection assured them within its bounds.
* * * Beyond doubt, the Indians so
understood the treaty, and the Congress legis-
lated in accord with its amended terms to
which the Indians agreed * * *. The
Indians’ rights are not to be prejudiced by
technical construction or words of doudtful
import’ (at p. 833). .

“Because of a delay in submitting to the
tribes a minor amendment to the treaty in-
serted by the Senate, the Fort Laramie
treaty was not proclaimed or published in
the usual course. Government officials
thereafter assumed that no valid treaty ex-
isted, and it was in this belief that various
portions of the Indian domain were disposed
of without Indian consent. The Court of
Claims found that the treaty, having been
formally ratified, was valid and binding and
that the taking of lands without Indian con-
sent subsequent to this treaty was a viola-
tion of its terms, justifying the Indian.suit.

“In -1891 further recognition was given to.

the title of the Indians to the lands here in
question when an agreement was negotiated
between the United States and the Three
Affiliated Tribes providing for the cession to
the Federal Government of certain lands not
needed by the Indians, for which the Federal
Government paid $800,000, and guaranteeing
Indian possession of the lands not so ceded.
The agreement provides: ‘That the residue
of lands within said diminished reservation,
after all allotments have been made as pro-
vided in article 3 of this agreement, shall be
held by the said tribe of Indians as a reser-
vation.”? -The significance of this guaranty
is elaborated in the Presidential proclama-
tion which followed the ratification of this
agreement. That proclamation declared:

‘I furthermore notify all persons to par=-
ticularly observe that a certain portion of
the Fort Berthold Reservation nét ceded and

relinquished by sald agreement, is reserved

for allotment to, and also as a reservation
for, the said tribes of Indians; and all per-
sons are, therefore, hereby warned not to go
upon any of the lands so reserved, for any
purpose or with any intent whatsoever, as
no settlement or other right can be secured
upon said lands, and all persons found un-
lawfully thereon will be dealt with as tres-
passers and intruders; * * * (27 Stat.
979). 2

“Other agreements and statutes made with
the Three Affiliated Tribes of the Fort Ber-
thold Reservation are consistent’ with the
Toregoing provisions and guaranties.?

“In recent years the possessory rights of

-’he Three Affiliated Tribes in their remain-

ing tribal lands have been recognized and
guaranteed in a constitution and charter is-
sued under the act of June 18, 1934 (48 Stat.
©84), and ratified by vote of the Indians con-
cerned. N

“The constitution of the Three Afliated
"Cribes, following the language of the govern-
ing statute, authorizes the tribal business
council— .

“(e) To approve or veto any sale, disposi-
tion, lease, or encumbrance of tribal lands,
interests in lands, or other tribal assets which
may be authorized or executed by any au-

2 Act of Mar. 3, 1891 (26 Stat. 989, 1035).

® See unratified agreement of July 27, 1866
(Kappler, vol. 2, p. 1062); act of June 1, 1910
(36 Stat. 455).
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thorized official or agency of the Government,
provided that no tribal lands shall ever be
sold or encumbered, or leased for a period
exceeding 5 years, except that mineral lands
may be leased by the tribal business council
for such. longer periods as may be provided
by law.

“This solemn pledge that the United States
will not again, without Indian consent, de-
prive these Indians of any interest in their
remaining lands, is further amplified in sec-
tion 5 of the corporate charter ratified on
April 24, 1937.

“The history of our Federal negotiations
with these Indians indicates that at all times
the guaranties and protections which these
Indians asked from the Federal Government
and which were granted to them from time
to time in consideration of valuable cessions
of territory, were not merely guaranties
against private trespass, but were preemi-
nently-guaranties against any future taking
of Indian land for governmental purposes.
The spirit in which these- guaranties were
asked and given is that expressed over a cen-
tury ago by Attorney General Wirt who, on
the question of whether. surveying parties
might be sent over Indian soil without Indian
‘consent, declared:

“‘So long as a tribe. exists and remains in
possession of its lands, its title and possession
are sovereign and exclusive; and there exists
_no authority to enter upon their lands, for
any purpose whatever, without their consent.
Of the admission of this principle, the treaty
above referred to furnishes a proof. The
United States stood in peed of a road through
the lands of the Senecas from Fort Schlosser
to Lake Erie; yet, inasmuch. as they had no
authority to enter upon the lands of the
Senecas, even for the purpose of passing
through-them, without their consent, their
right-of-way becameé the subject of compact.
Although the Indian title: co ues only
during their possession, yet that possession
has been always held sacred, and can never
be disturbed but by their cohisent.- They do
not hold under the-States, nor under the
United States; their title is original, sover-
eign, and exclusive. We treat with them as
separate sovereignties; and while an Indian
nation continues to exist within its acknowl-
edged limits, we have no more right to enter
upon their territory, without their consent,
than we have to enter upon the territory of
a foreign prince’ (1 Op. Atty. Gen. 465, 466—
467).

“This statement of ‘Federalplaw and policy
has been often repeated but has not been im-

.proved_upon.*

“Since, however, treaty obligations may be
violated by, act of Congress® the possessory
rights of these Indians depend upon whether
Congress, in appropriating funds for the con-
struction of the Garrison Dam, or otherwise
le ;islating thereon, will continue to respect
the trsaty obligations of the United States.

2. PFORMS OF LEGAL PROTECTION

“Assuming that an attempt is made to con-
demn or otherwise interfere with Indian pos-
session of tribal land in connection with the
canstruction of the proposed Garrison Dam,
the Indians desire to know in what way they
can challenge the legality of the proposed
action. Inasmuch as the whole Garrison
Dam project i8 still in the blueprint stage
and apparently no moneys have as yet been
appropriated which could be used for the
building of the dam or for the condemnation
of these Indian lands, it would be premature
to discuss the authority of- the War Depart-
ment to condemn these lands or to flood
them without condemnation. Assuming,
however, that the Indians concerned are sat-
isfied that no legal authority exists for the
takirg of these lands in derogation of treaty

Law, pp. 309, 353 .
"Cherokee Tobacco (11 Wall. 618 (1870) );
Chinese Exclusion Case (130 U. S. 581, 600),

‘See Cohen, Handbook of Federal Indian
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rizhts, two methods would appear to be
avallable to the tribe for the presentation
of such objections. In the first place, the
tribe might bring suit to enjoin the Secre-
tary of War from the commission of the acts
in question. In the second place, the tribe
might awalt the institution of condemnation
proceedings and in those proceedings chal-
lenge the legality of the proposed condem-
nation. -

“The legal capacity of the tribe thus to
defend its rights is recognized in article VI,
section 5 (e) of the tribal constitution and
in section 5 (1) of the tribal charter. Its
right to employ counsel for such purposes
is recognized in article VI, section 3 (a) of
the tribal constitution. Under these provi-
sions of its constitution and charter, the
tribe has the same right that any American
citizen has to challenge construction activi-
ties carried on or threatened by the War
Department or any other department of the

ederal Government, where it appears that
such activities are not properly authorized
by act of Congress or are in derogation of
rights established under Federal law. The
propriety of such action, fer example, is sus-
tained in Ryan v. Chicago, B. & Q. R. Co.
(59 F. (2d) 137 (C. C. A. 7, 1932)), in which
an injunction was issued against the Secre-
tary of War and his subordinates and attor-
neys to prevent construction of a dam, and
condemnation proceedings in support of such
construction, where the contemplated dam
was in excess of the legislative authority
granted by Congress. The court™held that
such a suit was not a suit against the Fed-
eral Government but merely a suit against
Federal officials to prevent action_in excess
of their statutory authority. In that case
Congress, after the issuance of the injunc-
%lon, enacted supplementary legislation spe-
cifically authorizing the dam against which
the injunction had issued. The case, how-
ever, is square authority for the proposition
that suit will lie against the Secretary of
War to prevent construction activities not
clearly authorized by act of Congress. As
the court said in. ghat case:

“The least that can be said is that there
is great doubt and uncertainty as to the
extent of the authorization of Congress rel-
ative to the Alma Dam. Thé damage which
will necessarily result to appellee under plan
2 is so enormous that no uncertainty should
be permitted to exist as to appellee’s right to
compensation’ (p. 143). .

‘“Again, in the case of Barr et al v. Rhodes
(35 F. Supp. 223 (D. C. W. D; Ky.)), the
tourt declared:

“‘The rule seems to be that the courts
will not interfere with matters entrusted by
Congress to the discretion of the heads of
executive departments of the Government,
but that they will enjoin acts which are
beyond the scope of statutory authority or
Jurisdiction of executive officers. As was
said In Goldira v. Weeks, supra (271 U. S.
536; 46 S. Ct. 616; 70 L. Ed. 1074) “by reason
of their illegality, their acts or threatened
acts are personal and derive no official justi-
fication from their doing them in asserted
agency for the Government”’ (p. 225).

“In the case of St. Louis & F. R. Co. v. City
of Tulsa (213 Fed. 87 (D. C. E. D,, Okla.)),
a somewhat similar question was discussed
in connection with g suit against a munici-
pality to enjoin condemnation proceedings.
It was there held that an injunction was a
proper remedy to prevent the municipality
from interferring, through condemnation
proceedings, with rights which it had al-
ready granted to a railroad. The court
quoted with approval from Elliott on Roads
and Streets (2d ed.): .

“‘Section 219. * * ¢ . The intent of the
legislature.to destroy the rights granted by
former statutes must unequivocally appear.
A grant of authority to appropriate land
selzed under former statutes, or previously
seized for public use, cannot ordinarily be
inferred from“a mere general grant. The
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general rule is that if the two uses are not
inconsistent, and both. may stand together
without material impairment of the first,
authority for the second use may be implied
from a general grant; but, if they cannot
coexist without material impairment of the
first, authority to take for the second cannot
be implied from a mere general grant of
authority to condemn’ (p. 93).

“It is clear that the remedy of injunction,
which, as the foregoing cases indicate, is
available to a non-Indian citizen to prevent
unlawful interference with his property, is
equally available to the Three Affiliated
Tribes of the Fort Belknap Reservation.®

“FELIX S. COHEN,
“Associate Solicitor.”

* - L L .

EFFECT OF GARRISON DAM ON INDIANS

Senator O'MaHONEY. What do you think
about the Indians? .

Representative LEMKE. The land that is to
be taken away from the Fort Berthold Indians
is land where their bread basket is.

Senator O’'MAHONEY. The bread basket of
the Indians? .

Representative LEMKE. Yes, sir. It is the
river bottom ' cultivated land. I am not
satisfied with the lands that the War De-
partment is attempting to give to the Indians.

Senator MCKELLAR. You cannot have the
dam and keep the Indians there.

Representative LEMxe. No. But I #m not
satisfied with the land the Army has offered
to the Indians. I do not think that upland
hills. is fair compensation, or anywhere near
it. I am willing to help the Indians find land
that will compensate them.

Senator McKrLLAR. Surely there are local
courts out there that will give the Indians
what they are entitled to.

. Representative LEMxE. In my experience as
a legal practitioner I have found this——

Senator MCKELLAR. When I was practicing
law I was the trial lawyer of my firm, and I
tried a good many condemnation cases. I
hardly recall one when the persons were not
amply compensated, not in a case that I ever
tried, and sometimes they got more than they
were entitled to.

Senator O’'MAHONEY. The difficulty here as
affecting the Indians is this, that the possi-
bility of compensation does not exist, for
compensation in money means nothing to
them. What they want are homes.

Senator McKELLAR. But it seems to me the
progress of the country rather requires that
this dam shall be built, and I think the In-
dians should be compensated in the fullest
measure, because, so to speak, we treat them

" as the wards of the Nation, and we ought to

be generous with them.

PROPOSAL TO COMPENSATE INDIANS NOT
ADEQUATE :

Senator O'MAHONEY. Congressman LEMKE,
you were about to say that in your opinion
the proposal made by the War Department
to compensate the Indians is not adequate
compensation. ’

Representative LEMKE. No. If I am cor-
rectly informed by- the Bureau of Indian Af-
fairs, they are trying to push them up in the
Killdeer Mountains. But there is land in
North Dakota that is productive, and land
that probably could be irrigated, and I will
try to see that the Indians are given.

Senator O’'MAHONEY. Do you think the
members of the Committee on Indian Affairs
could rely upon’any vague promises of that
kind as to compensation?

Representative LEMKE. No. I think they
might have a fight over it, as you always find
when you deal with departments of the
Government,. 3

¢ Cherokee Nation v. Hitchcook (187 U. 8.
294); Lane v. Pueblo of Santa Rosa (249
U. 8. 110); and see Cohen, Handbook of
Federal Indian Law, pp. 283-285,
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Senator McKrLLAR. Again referring to my
personal history—which I ought not to refer
to, but sometimes I have to—when I was &
trial lawyer for about 17 or 18 years, I learned
to know men pretty well by looking at them.
I do not believe that the present head of the
Bureau of Engineers, General Wheeler, 1s
the kind of man who would see the Iudians
imposed upon. That is just the way I feel
about it.

Senator O'MaBHONEY. If that were true, I
think the Indians would probably rest very
easily, but that is not the case. General
Wheeler, able though he is—and I am glad
as a member of the Military Affairs Com-
mittee to have voted for his confirmation—
but he cannot create land to which these
Indians are to be moved.

Senator McKEeLLAR. But he can see that
they are treated fairly and justly.

Senator O’'MAHONEY. There is evidence be-
fore the Committee on Indian ATairs that
the land which is offered in the Xilideer
Mountains is not comparable land, anc this
18 now confirmed by Congressman LimxE.

Representative LEMKE. In dry years ther
is very little grass on those hillsides. Now

. 1t locks nice, and I have no intention of

criticizing the War Department, but if they
had gone there 8 or 4 years ago they would
have found no grass there. It just makes
a difference when you see it. %

. I repeat, and I will agree with the chair-
man, that the Indians, I believe, will have
to give way, because after all, even the
city of Williston will have to give way if sub-
sequent events show that it is for the best
interest of my State and the Nation.

TIME ELEMENT IN COMPENSATING INDIANS FOR

LOST LAND

Senator O’'MaHONEY. If you recommend t6
this committee that it report to the Senate
& bill which compels the Indians to go away,
do you also dgsire to say to those Indians
that for their compensation they must de-
pend, not upon this committee, not upon
the Congress, but upon the future action of
some court? Maybe 20 or 25 years may pass
before those Indians are compensated for
the lands taken away from them by Execu-

- tive order.

Representative LEMKE. I agree with you
absolutely on that. Something should be
done before the Indians are moved, that they
should get full compensation. Let me give
you an illustration: I handled a case at El-
wood, Ill. There they took a farm 150 years
old and before a Chicago jury I secured
$22,000 ‘more than the Government offered.

Senator O'MaHONEY. If you did that before
a Chicago jury you-ought to be able to do
something with a Senate committee.

Representative LEMKE. Then at Omaha,
when we had the Frazier-Lemke cases——

Senator O'MaHONEY. Who was that Lemke
whose name is mentioned there?

Representative LEMKE. Myself. When we
had the Frazier-Lemke cases, then these so-
called expert civil-service appraisers came
and testified that a home, though used 20
years, is as good as it was when built. But
when we had the Omaha condemnation cases
these same fellows appeared and testified
that a home depreciated 5 percent each year,
and at the end of 20 years it was worfh very
little.

Remember that if you go up against the
Federal Government you have all the power-
ful machinery arrayed against you. I will
say this in justification of the Army, that
General O'Brien, who was in charge, said,
“If I had known you before, we would not
have had all these lawsuits.” But as to these
Indians, with all the power of the Federal
Government, there is no way by which they
can collect what is due them unless Con-
gress gives them assistance. :

SUGGESTED AMENDMENT TO PROTECT INDIANS

Senator O'MAHONEY. Do you recommend
that we throw these Indians off the 'and and
trust to luck?
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Representative LemMxe. This project has
been started, and the Army engineers have
made surveys.

Benator O’'MAHONEY. It is in the blueprint
stage, but the Indians are on the land.

Representative LEMXE. I still feel that be-
fore the Indians are removed, we should
.compensate them and justify our action.
They have counsel now, and I think counsel
will attempt to get some settlement agree-

. able to both sides.

Senator O'MAHONEY. Would you see any
objection to a limitation being placed on thig
appropriation which would provide that th¢
Indians should not be driven off the land
until there is a settlement?

Representative LEMKE. I have no objection
to that. That is a limitation on their using
it, but they can go ahead with their plans
and preparation and construction. I am
perfectly in accord with the idea that the
Indians of all people have gotten a very bad
deal all through the history of the United
States of America.

Senator MCKELLAR., Any other questions?

Mr. LANGER. Mr. President—

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I yield to the Sen-
ator from North Dakota.

Mr. LANGER. I wish to ask a ques-
tion, if I may. Was the amendment
drawn with the consent and advice and
approval of the attorney for the three
affiliated tribes? )

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I did not have op-
‘portunity to consult the attorney for the
tribes, but I did consult the Department
of the Interior and the Office of Indian
Affairs, and I had the assistance of the
Office of Indian Affairs in the prepara-
tion of the amendment.

Mr. LANGER. I call the attention of
the distinguished Senator from Wyoming
to line 13, page 57. May I have his in-
terpretation ‘as to what will happen if it
should develop that the land offered in
exchange that is selected by the Depart-
ment of the Interior should be unsatis-
factory to the Indian tribe? |

Mr. OMAHONEY. If it should be un-
satisfactory to the Indian tribe, the ques-
tion, I think, would then be open for
further consideration, because the engi-
neers report as filed in the House con-
tains the provision that the total appro-
priation shall be sufficient to provide for
compensation for the Indians or for moy-
ing the Indians.

We also have in this appropriation bill
an item of $78,000,000 which will permit
the Department of the Interior, through
the Office of Indian Affairs, to make a
survey of that entire area for the purpose
of finding lands of the same quality and
suitable for exchange. .

Mr. LANGER. I am very much grati-
fied by the explanation, because I know
that the distinguished Senator, chairman
of the Committee on Indian Affairs, has
time and time again seen to it that the
Indians were protected. I am very happy
to know his interpretation of the item.

Mr. OMAHONEY. I am grateful to
the Senator.

Mr. GURNEY. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. OMAHONEY. I yield.

Mr. GURNEY. In view of the point
made by the Senator from Wyoming and
the Senatdr from North Dakota, I be-
lieve it would be well if we could have in
the Recorp at this point the pertinent
paragraph in. House Document 475,
which document is the basic baekground
for the whole Missouri River authoriza-
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tion. Therefore, I ask unanimous con-
sent that paragraph 12 of House Docu-
ment 475 appear in the REcorp at this
point.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
objection?

There being no objection, the para-
graph was ordered to be printed in the
RECORD, as follows:

12. The proposed reservoirs will inundate
Indian lands at several points. The esti-
mates submitted on the over-all cost of the
projects include funds to cover the cost of
taking such lands and buildings, including
relocation of burial grounds. It is to be
understood, therefore, that approval of this
plan includes authority for the Indians
through their tribal councils, with the ap-
proval of the Secretary of the Interior, to
convey and relinquish such property to the
United States, and authority for the Secre-
tary of War to enter into appropriate agree-
ments with the Secretary of the Interior and
the Indian tribes concerned for the payment
of the fair value of the property taken, or
for the contribution of a sum approximating
such value toward locating or constructing
or toward relocating or reconstructing build-
ings, works, facilities, or water projects in the
vicinity of the Missouri River or its tribu-
taries.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Iam very glad the
Senator has made that request, and I am
glad the mattér is to appear in the
RECORD.

Mr. President, I should like to add
that immediately following this inser-
tion, there should be inserted in the
RECORD a letter addressed to me by Mr.
Felix S. Cohen, Acting Solicitor of the
Department of the Interior, dealing with
the same subject.

There being no objection, the letter
was ordered to be printed in the RECORD,
as follows: -

Washington, D. C., December 14, 1945.
Hon. JoserpH C. O’'MAHONEY,
United States Senate.-

My DEAR SENATOR O’'MAHONEY: With ref-
erence to your telephonic inquiry concern-
ing the meaning and effect of the comments
made in paragraph 12 of the letter of the
Chief of Engineers,. United States Army,
dated December 31, 1943 (H. Doc. No. 475,
78th Cong., 2d sess., p. 4), concerning ar-
rangements to be made where Indian lands
are inundated by proposed reservoirs, there
are two observations that I should -like to
submit: .

1. As a legal matter I should think it very
doubtful whether a statement by the Chief
of Engineers of the United States Army in a
letter to the chairman of the House Commit-
tee on Flood Control would be considered
a limitation upon any powers of condemna-
tion which may be vested in the War De-
partment by prior legislation, such as the
act of March 3, 1901 (31 Stat. 1058, 1084; 25
U. 8. C,, sec. 857), authorizing the condem-
nation of Indian allotments with cash pay-
ment of damages. ’

2. Even if the statement in question should
be construed as having the force of law, it
purports in terms not to limit any legal au-
thority heretofore vested in Federal agencies
to carry out condemnation, but rather to
spell out authority to handle land transac-
tions with Indians on a basis of agreement
and subject to the approval of the Secre-
tary of the Interior. I do not doubt that
such a method of procedure is highly de-
sirable. Unfortunately, the language of the
statement in question, while purporting to
authorize future action on such a basis, does
not in terms limit action to any such basis.
It thus fails to accord to the Indians any

assurance that they will be consulted with.
regard to the disposition of their lands.

I trust that the foregoing observations
appropriately answer your inquiry. Because
of the pressure of time these observations
have not been submitted to the scrutiny of
the Interior Department and they. are there=-
fore to be considered merely as the expres-
sions of my own opinion.

Sincerely yours,
FELIX S. COHEN,
Acting Solicitor.

Mr. YOUNG. Mr. President, I should

like to address a question to the Senator

from Wyoming.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I yield.

Mr. YOUNG. I should like to ask the
distinguished Senator what effect the
amendment he had made just a moment
ago would have on the disposition of the
Indian problem.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. It would have the
effect of compelling.an immediate study
of this problem, so that the Indians
would not be removed from that land
until an opportunity had been granted
to make certain that they were being
properly treated.

Mr. YOUNG. I think the distin-
guished Senator from Wpyoming has
been very fair with the Indians. Prob-
ably this is the first time in 300 years
they have gotten such a deal. I think
they are in a bettgr situation than are
the whites. The whites will have their
lands condemned and payment receiyed,
and then will have to go and find homes
elsewhere. I have no objection to the
amendment.

In the Senator’s opinion, how long will
it take to settle these affairs? How long
will construction of the dam be held up?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I doubt very much
whether construction of the dam will
have to be held ‘up at all, provided the
War Department and the Interior De-
partment undertake, as it is the desire
of those who are the sponsors of the
amendment, the immediate solution of
the problem. y

I pointed out in the committee that
although a treaty was made with the
Indians at Fort Laramie in the middle of
the last century, almost a hundred years
ago, recognizing the Indians’ title to
these lands, and although later, in the
administration of President Benjamin
Harrison, some eight or nine million
acres of land were taken by Executive
order, the Indians were not compensated
for that taking until 20 or 30 years had
passed, until they had been authorized
by Congress to prosecute a claim in the
Court of Claims. That injustice is ob-
viated by this amendment. The respon-
sibility is really placed upon those who
desire to construct this dam to deal just-
ly with the Indians, and do it now.

Mr. YOUNG. I certainly am in ac-
cord with the Senator’s thinking, though
I had hoped this might be accomplished
in some other way. We have interested
in the solution of our affairs out there,
and in the construction of these dams,
the Bureau of Reclamation, the Army
Engineers, the Department of Agricul-
ture, and the Federal Power Commission,
and now there is being added the In-
terior Department. I think that places
more importance upon the interagency
committee there, composed-of these Fed-

eral departments, together with the
governors.
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FIRST DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATION ACT,
1946—CONFERENCE REPORT

Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President, I
submit a conference report on the First
Deficiency Appropriation ﬁ_Lct, 1946, for
which I ask immediate consideration.

Mr. O’MAHONEY. Mr. President,
may I ask the Senator if this _is t:he con-
ference report on the appropriation bill?
Mr. McKELLAR. It is.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. May I ask @he
Senator whether the amendmenq which
the committee recommended with re-
spect to the protection of the rights of
the Indians was agreed to in the report?

Mr. McKELLAR. It was agreed to by
the House, and it had been agreed to by
the Senate conferees. We must first
adopt the conference report. The com-
mittee has instructed me to move two
amendments, one of which is to strike
out “one thousand eight hundred and
thirty” where it oecurs twice. The mo-
tions will be made after the conference

agreed to.

rerl:&':.t g'MAHg ONEY. I understand the
Senator to say that the Senate commit-.
{tee amendment protecting the rights of
?the three Affiliated Tribes remains in the
; bill.

o Mr. McKELLAR. The Senator Is cor-
!/ rect. It remains in the bill.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
objection to the present consideration of
the conference report?

Mr. OMAHONEY. Mr. President, r
serving the right to object, I wish to pur-
sue a little further the question with re-
spect to the Indian amendment. I un-
derstand frof& the clerk of the commit-
tee that the amendment is in disagree-
ment.

Mr. MCKELLAR. The amendment is
in disagreement, but the language con-
cerning the Indians is not in disagree-
ment, except as the whole amendment is
in disagreement.

Mr. OMAHONEY. As I understand,
the disagreement affects only the height
of the dam.

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes.

Mr. RUSSELL. It is purely a technical
disagreement, so far as the Indian
amendment is concerned.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
objection to the present consideration of
the conference report?

There being no objection, the Senate
proceeded to consider the report.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on agreeing to the conference
report.

The report was agreed ta.

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. HUFF-
MAN in the chair) laid before the Senate
a message from the House of Repre-
sentatives announcing its action on cer-
tain amendments of the Senate to House
bill 4805, which was read as follows:

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, U. S.,
December 19, 1945.

Resolved, That the House recede from its
disagreement to the amendments of the Sen-
ate numbered 18, 35, 42, 48, 54, and 88 to the
bill (H. R. 4805) making appropriations to
supply deficiencies in certain appropriations
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1946, and
for prior fiscal years, to provide supplemental
appropriations for the fiscal year ending
Jupe 30, 1946, and for other purposes, and
concur therein.

That the House recede from its disagree-
ment to the amendment of the Senate num-
bered 59, to said bill, and concur therein with
an amendment as follows: In lieu of the
amount of $15,000,000 named in said amend-
ment insert “$7,500,000";

That the House recede from its dlsagree\-
ment to the amendmentsof the Senate num-
bered 103, to said bill, and concur therein
with an amendment as follows: In lieu of
the matter stricken cut and inserted by said
amendment insert: “Provided, That no part
of this appropriation shall be available or
used to maintain or operate the Garrison
(N. Dak.) Reservoir at a higher maximum ¥
pool ~elevatiéh than 1,830 feet, or for con- §
structing dikes or levees which would be j
required by a higher pool elevation than
1,830 feet for operating such dam, unless an
operation at a higher level shculd be au-
thorized hereafter by law; Provided further,
That no part of the appropriation for the
Garrison Reservoir herein contained may be
expended for actual construcztion cf the dam
itself until suitable land fcund by the Secre-
tary of the Interior to be equal in quality
and sufficient in area to compensate the
Three Afiiliated Tribes shall be offered to the
said tribes in exchange for the land on the
Fort Berthold Reservation which shall be
inundated by the construction of the Garri-
son Dam.” :

Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President, I
move that the Senate agree to the amend-
ment of the House to the amendment of
the Senate numbered 59.

The motion was agreed to.

/74
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ELLENDER in the chair) laid before the
Senate a message from the House of
Representatives apnouncing its action on
a certain amendment of the Senate to
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bill 4805, whieh -was read as
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S:
'HE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, U. S.,
- December 20, 19

csolved, That the House disagree to e
amendment of the Senate to the amendmeRt
of the House to the amendment of the Senat
No. 103 to the bill (H. R. 4805) making ap-
propriations to supply deficiencies in cer-
tain appropriations for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1946, and for prior fiscal years, to
provide supplemental appropriations for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1946, and for other
purposes,

Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President, I
move that the Senate recede from its
amendment to the amendment of the
House to the amendment of the Senate
numbered 103.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on agreeing to the motion of
the Senator frqm Tennessee.

Mr. WHITE. Mr. President, will the
iSsenat;or indicate what the amendment

i

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. As the Sen-
ator knows, there has been a prolonged
fight regarding a dam in the northern
part of North Dakota, and the conferees
on the part of the House and those on
the part of the Senate have now held two
conferences regarding it.

The question is whether the dam
should be constructed at a height of 1,830
feet or 1,850 feet. The House insists
upon 1,830 feet and the Senate insists
upon 1,850 feet.

The conferees have tried to arrive at
an agreement and have not been able
to do so. Yesterday the Senate agreed
to an amendment which was sent to thé
House and there disagreed to. My mo-
tion is that the Senate recede from its
amendment to the amendment of the
House to Senate amendment 103. We
hope that when the conferees again meet
an agreement may be reached. If the
motion to which I have referred is agreed
to I shall then move that the Scnate
disagree to the amendment of the House
to the amendment of the Senate num-
bered 103, ask for a further conference,
and that the Chair appoint conferees on
the part of the Senate.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. - The
question is on agreeing to the motion
of the Senator from Tennessee.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Mr. President, I
was on the telephone when the Senator
from Tenncssee took the floor.

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. May I ask the
3enator to state what is the status of the
Senate amendment affecting the rights
of the Indians of the Three Affiliated
Tribes?

Mr. McKELLAR. That matter is in-
cluded in the amendment relating to the
height of the dam.
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“"The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on agreeing to the motion of
the Senator from Tennessee that the
Senate recede from its amendment to
the amendment of the House to Senate
amendment 103.

The motion was agreed to.

Mr. McKELLAR. I now move that
the Senate disagree to the amendment
of the House to .the amendment of the
Senate No. 103, request a further con-
ference with the House thereon, and that
the Chair appoint the conferees on the
part of the Senate. =

The motion was agreed to; and the
Presiding Officer appointed Mr. McKEL-
LAR, Mr. GLass, Mr. HAYDEN, Mr. TYDINGS,
Mr. RUSSELL, Mr. MCCARRAN, Mr. BROOKS,
Mr. BripGES, Mr. GURNEY, and Mr. BaLL
conferees on the part of the Senate at
the further conference. -,

>~ >— )\ ~<

Mr. OMAHONEY. The only amend-
ment in disagreement, I take it, is the
one relating to the height of the dam.

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. If that mat-
ter could be settled there would be no
difficulty with reference to the subject
about which the Senator has spoken.
But in order to reach an agreement it
will be necessary for the Senate to re-
cede from its amendment to the amend-
ment of the House to Senate amendment

103. Then the entire matter can be
taken up again, and when’that is done,
we hope to do better than we were able to
do before.

I may say that the situation is a very

difficult one. So far as I know, there
has been no opposition to the Senator’s
amendment. I do not think any oppo-
sition will be encountered. The con-
troversy relates to the height of the dam,
whether it should be 1,830 feet or 1,850
feet.
eMr. O’MAHONEY. And the pending
motion of the Senator is to enable the
conferees on the part of the ‘Senate to
return to a conference with conferees
on the part of the House, and reach some
kind of an agreement relative to the
height of the dam.

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I thank the Sen-

ator.
5 X
A % >+ X

~
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DECEMBER 20

FIRST CIENCY APPROPRIATION ACT,
1946—CONFERENCE REPOR'
r. McCKELLAR submitted the

lowing report:

The committee of conferemce on the dis-
agreeing votes of the two Houses on the
amendment of the House to the amend-
ment of the Senate numbered 103 to the

“ bill (H. R. 4805) making appropriations to
supply deficiencies in certain appropriations
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1946, and
for prior fiscal years, to provide supplemental
appropriations for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1946, and for other purposes, having
met, after full and free conference, have
agreed to recommend and do recommend to
their respective Houses as follows:

Amendment numbered 103: That the Sen-
ate recede from its disagreement to the
amendment of the House to the amendment
of the Senate numbered 103, and agree to the
House amendment with an amendment, as
follows:

In lieu of the matter inserted by said
House amendment, insert the following:
“Provided, That no part of the funds herein
appropriated shall be available for the actu-
al construction of the Garrison Reservoir
Dam, North Dakota, 1MQEW8 her,
That no part of the appropriaf!®n for the
Garrison Reservoir herein contained may be
expended for actual construction of the dam
itself until suitable land found by the Sec-
retary of the Interior to be equal in quality
and sufficient in area to compensate the
Three /ffiliated Tribes shall be offered to
the said tribes in exchange for the land on
the Fort Berthold Reservation which shall
be inundated by the construction of the Gar-
rison Dam”; and the House agree to the
fame,

KENNETH MCKELLAR,

CARL HAYDEN,

RICHARD B. RUSSELL,

PAT MCCARRAN,

C. WAYLAND BROOKS,

CHAN GURNEY,

JoserH H. BALL,
Managers on the Part of the Senate.

CLARENCE CANNON,

Louis Luprow,

Louis C. RABAUT,

JOHN TABER,

R. B. WIGGLESWORTH,

ALBERT J. ENGEL,
Managers on the Part of the House.

R ShORr e CENEY
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Amendment numbered 103: That the Sen-
ate recede from its disagreement to the

-amendment of the House to the amendment
of the Senate numbered 103, and agree to
the House amendment with an amendment,
as follows: In lieu of the matter inserted by
said House amendment, insert the following:
“Provided, That no part of the funds herein
appropriated shall be available for the actual
construction of the Garrison Reservoir Dam,
North Dakota, itself: Provided further, That
no part of the appropriation for the Garrison
Reservoir herein contained may be expended
for actual construction of the dam itself
until suitable land found by the Secretary
of the Interior’ to be equal in quality and
sufficient in area to compensate the Three
Amfiliated Tribes shall be offered to the said
tribes in exchange for the land on the Fort
Berthold Reservation which shall be inun-
dated by the construction of the Garrison
Dam”; and the House agree to the same.

CLARENCE CANNON,

Louis Luprow,

Louis C. RABAUT,

JOHN TABER,

R. B. WIGGLESWORTH,

ALBERT J. ENGEL, .

Managers on the Part of the House.

KENNETH MCKELLAR,

CARL HAYDEN,

RicuHARD B. RUSSELL,

PAT MCCARRAN,

C. WAYLAND BROOKS,

CHAN GURNEY,

JosePpH H. BALL,

Managers on the Part of the Senate.
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Mr. GURNEY. Mr. President, T now
send forward another amendment, relat-
ing to the Garrison Reservoir in North

PRESIDING OFFICER. ' The
clegX will state the amendment. )

e CHieF CLERK. It is proposed on
age 9, after line 22, to insert the follow-
ing:

Garrison (N. Dak.) Reservoir: For acquisi-
tion of the lands and rights therein within
the taking line of Garrison Reservoir which
lands lie within the area now established as
the Fort Berthold Indian Reservation;
N. Dak.,, including all elements of value above
or below the surface thereof and including
all improvements, severance damages and re-
establishment and relocation costs the sum
of 85,105,625, which said sum is included in
the total allocated under this act for the
said Garrison Reservoir and which shail be
deposited in the Treasury of the United
States to the credit of the Three Affiliated
Tribes of Fort Berthold Reservation, to be

subject to withdrawal and disbursement as
herein provided. This amount is made avail-
able subject to the following conditions sub-
sequent and in the event the said conditions
are not complied with then this amount shall
lapse and be thereby null and void. Said
conditions subsequent are:

That a contract between the United States
and the said Three Affiliated Tribes shall be
negotiated and approved by a majority of
the adult members of said tribes and enacted
into law by the Congress, providing for the
conveyance of saiti lands and interests and
the use and distribution of said fund and
that disbursements from said fund shall be
made forthwith in accordance with eaid ap-
proved contract and act of Congress. -

That sald contract shall be submitted to
the Congress on or before the 1st day of
June 1948: Provided, however, That, notwith-
standing said contract or the provisions of
this act, the said Three Affiliated Tribes may
bring suit in the Court of Claims as pro-
vided in section 24 of the act of August 13,
1846, on account of additional damages, if
any, alleged to have been sustained by said
tribes by reason of the taking of the said
lands and rights in the said Port Berthold
Indian Reservation on account of any treaty
obligation of the Government, any intangible
cost of reestablishment or relocation or any
other basfs of claim cognizable under said
act of August 13, 1946, and for which the
said tribes are not compensated by the said
$5,105,625.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on agreeing to the amend-
ment:

Mr. LUCAS. Mr. President, I regret
to talk about the amendment, but I con-
fess it was difficult for me to understand
the reading of the amendment. The
clerk read it rather fast. I wish the Sen-
ator would briefly explain to me why all
these Indians must be considered at this
time, and why this amount of money
must be provided at this time. I do not
quite get the purport of it.

Mr. GURNEY. ‘In the first place, the
amount of money provided in the bill is
$5,105,000. This is to pay the Indians
for the land that will be inundated when
the water comes up to the level behind
Garrison Dam. It also pays for moving
the Indians away from that land to other
land, and for resettlement, the build-
ings, and what not, that are presently
under the taking line, when the reser-
voir is filed. Of course, the provisions
in the bill are such that the $5,000,000
goes into the Treasury, so that it will be
held in trust until the three tribes of
Indians in the Fort Berthold Reserva-
tion agree to the settlement.
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Mr. LUCAS. Mr. President, will the
Sénator yield? . ;

Mr. GURNEY. I yield.

Mr. LUCAS. If it is impossible to get
the Indians to agree, then as I under-
stand it, there will be no money spent?

Mr. GURNEY. That is correct.

Mr. LUCAS. Who is responsible for
pressing for this amendment, if it is not
known where the Indians stand on it?

Mr. GURNEY. During the hearings,
the Indians appeared before the com-
mittee with legal counsel and at that
time presented their story. The sub-
committee suggested that the Army en-
gineers and the Indians get together,
after the hearing which we accorded
them, to see if they.could not agree on
the language that would be satisfactory
to both parties. Of course, the Army
engineers could not in.any way try to

ge/t together with the Indians on ¥gv-
thing intangible, such as the loss oI
property rights, moving away from their
homes, and things of that sort; so the
$5,000,000 is merely an agreement made
between the Army engineers and the In-
dians, through their legal representa-
tive, on the tangibles, land, buildings,
things that can be seen.

Mr. LUCAS. How many Indians are
involved in the transaction?

Mr. GURNEY. Two thousand and
seventeen. g
Mr. LUCAS. And what is the extent
of the land that is expected to be in-

undated?

Mr. GURNEY. One hundred and
fifty-nine thousand acres.

Mr. LUCAS. Did legal representatives
for the Indians appear before the com-
mittee and ask for the money? I mean,
did they - request the Appropriations
Committee to approve legislation_ of thi_s
kind?

Mr. GURNEY. As I said, the Indians
with their legal representatives and the
Army engineers have agreed to this
amount of money for the tangibles.

§ They are not in agreement on the in-

§ tangibles, so the amendment gives con
gressional authorization for the Indians

! to take that part of the claim to the
Court of Claims.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Mr. President,
would the Senator yield to me for a brief
statement? -

Mr. GURNEY. I yield to the Senator
«from Wyoming. .

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Mr. President,
when the appropriation bill dealing with
this matter was before the Senate a year
ago, the Senate adopted an amendment
whieh I had proposed in committee, to
provide that before the dam itself should
be built, the Army engineers should offer
to the Indians in- compensation for the
land which was to be taken, land equal in
area and comparable in value to that
which was being taken. It provided
that the decision as to whether or not
the land to be offered was compensatory
should be made by the Secretary of the
Interior. An amendment was worked
out at one of the sessions of the commit-
tee between the Chief of Engineers,
General Wheeler, and myself. The Army
engineers, acting in compliance with
that amendment, made a survey-of the
general area in which the Indians live
and in which the dam is to be built, and

/147
JuLy- 24

selected certain lands now belonging to
other persons which the Army engineers
proposed should be condemned by the
Federal Government, and, having been
condemned, should be given to the In-
dians in exchange for the lands that
were to be taken away.

The Interior Department felt that the
offer was not adequate and did not com-
ply with the provisions of the law; so
that when thie measure came before the
Congress at this session, the problem still
remained unsolved. It is a problem, I
will say to the Senator from Illinois, be-
cause of the fact that these three Indian
tribes, known as the three affiliated
tribes, who occupy the Fort Berthold In-
dian  Reservation, once before had an
experience with the Federal Government,
in which they lost some 4,000,605 acres
of land. The Federal Government took

that great area from these same Indiaus,
about 75 years ago, to give some of it to
the railroads, in order that railroad
transportation might be provided in this
area, to set aside some of it for settle-
ment by white settlers, and. so forth.
The land was taken, but the Indians were
not compensated for more than 50 years.
Long after the Indians who were de-
prived of this 4,000,000 acres had suffered
that loss, the Congress of the United
States gave them authority to sue in the
Court of Claims. They recovered a
judgment, the payment of which was
authorized by Congress. That was their
experience about 50 years ago. I point
out, I will say to the Senator from Illi-
nois, that most of the land was taken
from the Indians by Executive order,
issued, I think, during the administra-
tion of Benjamin Harrison. I allude to
that fact in order to demonstrate that
the Executive order was not an invention
of recent years.

In any event, however, when the bill
came up for consideration this year, the
problem remained unsolved. During the
hearings to which the Senator from
South Dakota has referred, when coun-
sel for the Indians was making his rep-
resentations to the committee, in the
presence of the Army engineers and of a
delegation from the Fort Berthold In-
dian Reservation, he said, in answer to
a question that was propounded by one
of the members of the committee, that
the Indians and the Army engineers had
never had an opportunity to try to come
to an agreement themselves. Thereupon
it was suggested by the subcommittee
that the Army engineers and the In-
dians, through their counsel and their
three representatives who were then in
Washington, should go into conference
the next day to see whether or not it
would be possible to come to an under-
standing.

The amendment which was presented
by the committee, except for the last
proviso, was written by the attorney for
the Indians. It was agreeable to the
Army engineers and agreeable to the
members of the committee. The amend-
ment provided -that the sum of approxi-
mately $5,165,000 should be set aside to
compensate the Indians for certain tan-
g'blc losses. The Indians said that
$5,000,000 would not compensate them|
that it would not pay for the loss of
treaty rights. Thereupon it was sug=-

—
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gested that an additional proviso should
be added giving the Indians the right
to sue in the Court of Claims for any other
damages, if there are such, which they
may suffer by reason of the taking of
this land. The $5,000,000 figure was
reached by the Army engineers by way
of the appraisal of the land that was
proposed to be substituted for the land
to be taken.

"I may say that the land which is to
be taken,. which will be flooded, covers
about 159,000 acres. It consists of one-
third of the diminished reservation of
these. Indians. It contains their so-
called bottom lands, the lands in which
most of them live. The Indians natu-
rally dislike to be deprived of their
homes. It may be doubted, and seri-
ously doubted; whether there is any other
solution if the dam is to be built, " The

Indians posed at one time to the
Army engineers that instead of building
the Garrison Dam, three other small
dams should be constructed. The judg-
ment of the Army engineers expressed
to the committee was that these other
dam sites and the structures that could
be built there, would not serve the pur-
poses of flood control. It was suggested
by the Governor of North Dakota when
he came to Washington and appeared
before the House committee, that the
compensation should be made bv way of
cash.

The provision contained in the bill is
not self-enforcing. The bill provides
that before it shall become absolutely
effective the Indians at a meeting on
their own reservation shall decide
whether or not to accept it. If the In-
dians do not accept it, then the case re-
mains substantially as it is now.

Mr. LUCAS. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. 1 yield.

Mr. LUCAS. I wish to ask the Sena-
tor, who is pushing the project, besides
the Ind#ihs and the Army engineers?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. The Indians are
not pushing the project, if the Senator
refers-to the Garrison Dam.

Mr. LUCAS. I am referring to the
Garrison Dam which is going to require
the taking of the number of acres the
Senator referred to.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. The Garrison
Dam is being pushed in the first instance
by the Army engineers, who tell the com-
mittee and tell Congress that that is the
site at.which the dam can be most ef-
fectly constructed, most efficiently to
control the flood waters of the river.

Mr. LUCAS. What territory does the
river affect? Does it run through North
Dakota and South Dakota?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. It affects the ter=
ritory down the Missouri and the Mis-
sissippi Rivers.

Mr. LUCAS. . It is part of the flood-
‘control program. r

Mr. O'MAHONEY. It is. Itis a bene-
ficial part of the flood-control program.

Mr. LUCAS. The situation is a very
interesting dbne. I wish to say that I had
some experience with the Army engineers
previous to the war when they took over
for flood-control purposes certain lands
which were adjacent to a river. The ex-
perience I had with them was an un-
pleasant one so far as the payment of
the actual fair cash value of the land
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was concerned. Many a farmer pro-
tested, and protested in vain. During the
war the Army engineers changed their
policy, as I understand, entirely. At the
beginning of the war, when the Army en-
gineers and other Army officials began
taking property in my section of the
country for military purposes, immedi-
ately there arose some fear in the minds
of the landowners, by reason of the pre-
vious experience with the Army engi-
neers with respect to fair and equitable
treatment. They had some hesitancy in
dealing with the Army engineers because
they feared they were not going to re-
ceive what the land was worth. But dur-
ing the war they did receive what the
land was worth. I certainly hope they
do not revert to the policy of taking land
that was in effect before the war, so far as

flood control is concerned, and the erec-
tion of dams and other structures neces-
sary to harness the waters of the West,
the South, or any other section of
America.

Mr. President, I want to speak out
rather boldly. I hope the Army engi-
neers who are going to do this work,
behind which the Congress of the United
Stdtes will stand, do not take a niggardly
position with respect to the value of the
lands which are owned by the people
who are finally going to be obliged to
give them up for flood-control purposes.

Mr. TYDINGS. Mr. President, will
the Senator yield?

Mr. OMAHONEY. I yield.

Mr. TYDINGS. As I understand, the
$5,000,000 may be insufficient or it may
be sufficient, but it is to be used exclu-
sively for the real-estate ventures of the
project, and the amount does not em-
brace aboriginal, incorporeal heredita-
ments.

Mr. O'MAHONEY, It embraces other
factors of damage besides the actual real
estate. It embraces the cost of certain
buildings and the like. I'shall not use
the mixture of aboriginal and Black-
stonian metaphors, which the Sznafor
from Maryland used, but I shall say it
does not involve the violation of treaty
rights. If treaty rights have been vio-
lated, then under the proviso which has
been added to the bill the Indians are
given the positive jurisdiction to raise the
question in-the Court of Claims as pro-
vided under the Indian Claims Commxs-
sion.

Mr. TYDINGS. Mr. President, will
the Senator yield for one observation?

Mr. OMAHONEY. Yes.

Mr. TYDINGS. I hope when the over-
all figure is written, however, that the
aborlgmal incorporeal hereditaments
will be duly compensated for so far as
the Indigns surrendering the land are
concerned.

Mr. YOUNG. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. 1 yield.

Mr. YOUNG. Under the amendment
sponsored by the able Senator from
Wyoming [Mr. O’MAHONEY], last year,
the Army engineers were given the right
to condemn land and secure lieu lands
for the Indians; that is correct, is it not?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. That is correct.

Mr. YOUNG. And under the present
amendment they would not havé that
right?

Ly
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Mr. O'MAHONEY. The Senator is
correct.

Mr. YOUNG. I personally believe that

the amendment sponsored by the Sena-
tor from Wyoming was a very fair one
and a good one for the Indians, buf it did
not result in a solution of the problem.
In fact, it even raised another problem,
that of the white people of North Dakota
whose lands would .be acquired for the
Indians. The cash settlement, I believe,
is the only way out, and I believe the
Indians themselves will eventually agree
that it is the best solution. I hope the
treatment of the Indians will be gener-

Mr LUCAS. I hope so. I simply
raised the question, because, as I said
before, I had had a somewhat urpleasant

experience with the Army engineers re-
specting the value they had placed in
their appraisals on certain lands in my
section of the country. I may have more
tg say on that subject as time goes on.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Mr. President, it
ghould be said that the figure contained
in the bill, $5,105,625, was a figure which
was reached by the Army engineers and
the Indians who were here with their
counsel, as adequate compensation for
the physical, tangible damage occasioned
by the taking of the land.

The additional damage whlch the In-
dians claim is governed by the conclud-
ing proviso, which gives tribes the au-
thority to bring suit in the Court of
Claims “on account of additional dam-
ages, if-any, alleged to have been sus-
tained by said tribes by reason of the
taking of the said lands and rights in
the said Fort Berthold Indian Reserva-
tion on account of any treaty obligation
of the Government, any intangible cost
of reestablishment or relocation or any
other basis of claim cognizable under
said act of August 13, 1946, and for
which the said tribes are not compens-
ated by the said $5,105,625.”

So the whole question can be reviewed
by the Court of Claims on the basis of
any failure of compensation in this sum.

Mr. LANGER. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I yield.

Mr. LANGER. I ask the Senator if he
does not know that this land was not
appraised by North Dakota people.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I did not know
that.

Mr. LANGER. Even the abstracts
were examined by people from without
the State of North Dakota.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I was not advised
of the procedure taken by the Army en-
gineers in making the appraisal. The
committee did not go into that question
when we were advised by the representa-
tive of the Indians that this figure was

_satisfactory for the items which were
mentioned.

Mr..LANGER. I know from my asso-
ciation with the distinguished Senator
on the Indian Affairs Committee last
year that the Senator knows that this is
the very best land in that locality. It is
nearly all bottom land.

Mr. OMAHONEY. The land which is
to be taken? *

Mr. LANGER. The land which is to
be taken.
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Mr. OMAHONEY. That is my under-
standing.

Mr. LANGER. Does the Cenator know
that the land of some of the farmers
whose land was to be taken for this pur-
pose was condemned, and that the farm-

ers insisted upon a jury trial? The jury"

found that that land, which is not as
good as this land, was worth- $36 an
acre, while the Indians are receiving
only $31.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I was not aware
of that. :

Mr. LANGER. I wanted to get that
fact in the record. I am sure that my
distinguished colleague [Mr. Young]
does too.

Even though this amount is accepted
by the Indians, they are accepting it with
a pistol at their heads. They know taat
the Garrison Dam is to be built. They
know that their property is to be taken.
I serve notice now that even though they

- accept this amount-with a pistol at their
heads, some of us in North Dakota are
going to insist that they get a sum ade-
quate to compensate them for the value
of the property which is taken.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Let me say that it
was for the purpose of removing the
pistol that the Senator from Wyoming
offered the concluding proviso, which au-
thorizes the Indians to take this matter
to the Court of Claims.

Mr. LANGER. That is correct. I wish
to say further that 2 years ago it was the
distinguished Senator from Wyoming
who insisted on that proviso being placed
.in the bill, that the Indians might be
properly compensated for the property
which was taken. I may add that my
colleague the distinguished junior Sena-
tor from North Dakota [Mr. Younc] has
spent many hours trying to settle the
question in a manner satisfactory both to
the Government and to the Indians. We
have had conference after conference on
it, and have done the very best we could
under the circumstances.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I have welcomed
the sympathetic cooperation of both
Senators from North Dakota. In the
Committee on Indian Affairs last year
the senior Senator from North Dakota,
who was a member of the committee,
cooperated very diligently in the hearings
upon this question. I am very happy to
see that there is so much concern to see
that the Indians shall be properly treated.
It must be remembered, however, that
we have carefully written into this
amendment the proviso that the settle-
ment must be accepted by the Indians,
and that a contract must be signed. If
the Indians are not satisfied, if the com-
pensation is not sufficient—although it
is $31.91 an acre—or if the amount al-
located for any of the other causes of
damage is not satisfactory, then it will
be for the Indians to say so when the
tribe meets to discuss the contract.

We have provided a specific sum which
apparently is adequate in the minds of
the ‘Indians who were here, for the tan-
gible damages which have been inflicted.
Over and above that, we have given the
Indians the right and the authcrity to
g0 into the Court of Claims and assert
any additional claims.

Mr. LUCAS. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. 1 yield.
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Mr. LUCAS. May I inquire of the able
Senator whether or not the evidence dis-
closes what will happen to the Indians
once they are removed from the reserva-
tion on which they live at the present
time?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. Of course they will
not be removed from the entire reserva-
tion. The 159,000 acres which will be
taken constitutes possible one-third of
the total reservation. ’

Mr. LUCAS. Is the remaining part
of the reservation productive land?

Mr. O'MAHONEY. No; it is princi-
pally grazing land. The land to be taken
is the better land.

'Mr. LUCAS. That is what I under-
stood. It seems to me that if we are
continually to take the better land for
flood-control purposes, sooner or later
we shall have to consider the ultimate
effect of it. I am for flood control; but
when we look at the little picture which
has been so vividly portrayed by the
Senator from Wyoming, and realize that
this group of Indians—2,000 or more—
who have been living in this fertile val-
ley all these years and using the valley
for farming purposes, are now compelled
to move back into the hills, so to speak,
and take their chances with grazing or
some other form of activity, I submit that
it is a serious question as to whether
or not the land shoeuld be taken.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. It was pointed out
in the hearing that the construction of
the reservoir will result in the creation
on the reservation, as it were, of a great,
new lake which will provide fishing as
well as water for livestock. Some ad-
vantages are likely to flow from the con-
struction of the reservoir.

Mr. LUCAS. The Indians cannot live
solely on fish.

Mr. YOUNG. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield? '

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I yield.

Mr. YOUNG. Let me say to the Sena-
tor from Illinois that the Indians will
not lose all of their good lands. As
the Senator from Wyoming has pointed
out, they will lose only about a third of
their lands. I think it will be possible
to acquire other lands and put together
good units. )

I-should like to add further that as
a result of the efforts of the senior Sen-
ater from North Dakota [Mr. LANGER]
and the Senator from Wyoming, the In-
dians have obtained a much better set-
tlement than they otherwise would have.
I believe it is one of the outstanding
settlements ever received by any Indians.

Mr. OMAHONEY. I am glad to have
the Senator say that, because I am cog-
nizant of the fact that if it had not
been for the amendment written into
the bill last year the Indians would prob-
ably have found themselves in exactly
the same position in which they were
75 years ago, when a large part of their
original lands were taken and they had
to wait half a century for any com-
pensation.

Mr. YOUNG. In the meantime, no
harm has been done ‘by delaying the
construction of the dam. They can
proceed in any orderly manner.
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Mr. O'MAHONEY. And there may be
no possibility during the next year, un-
der the appropriations provided in this
bill, that any substantial part of that
dam can be constructed. Certainly the
land will not be flooded for at least
5 years.

Mr. LUCAS. Mr. President, I regret
that I have taken so much time upon
this amendment, but it interested me,
and I am glad to get the story.

Mr. O'MAHONEY. I am glad the
Senator has asked the question, because
I think it is a very good thing to have
in the RECORD.

Mr. LANGER. MTr. President, I want
to thank the distinguished Senator from
Illinois for the interest he has taken in

some of my constituents. They are very
fine, brave people, and their sons enlistec
in the war and did a good job.

I want to call the attention of the Sen-
ator from Wyoming to this fact. I am
familiar with every acre of that land.
The units consist of two kinds of land.
They have land upon which they raise
a little crop and where they keep their
cattle, and- they have upland. They
make a little hay on the upland. When
we take the good land it detracts from
the value of the upland, as the Senator
can very well see. So the amount of
"$31.91 is entirely inadequate, because it
lessens the value of the upland.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on agreeing to the amend-
ment offered by the Senator from North
Dakota [Mr. GURNEY].



O'MAHONEY ANENDMENT No. 1

Which is a provision in the Supplemental Appropriations

Act for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1946
1945, 59 Stat 654)

(Act of Dec. 28,

_ ) ;» That no part of the appropriation for the Garri-
son Reservoir herein contained may be exgg.n ed for actual ‘cons;};xl:-
tion of the dam itself until suitable land found by the Secretary of
the Interior to be equal in quality and sufficient in area to compen-
sate the Three Affiliated Tribes shall be offered to the said tribes in
exchange for the land on the Fort Berthold Reservation which shall

be inundated by the eonstruction of the Garrison Dam.

O'MAHONEY AMENDMENT No. 2

Which 1s a provision in the War Department Civil
Functions Act making appropriations for the fiscal year
ending June 3 0, 1948 (Act of July 31, 1947, 61 Stat. 690)

That, notwithstanding said contract or the
provisions of this Act, the said Three Affiliated Tribes may bring suit in the Court
of Claims as provided in section 24 of the Act of August 13, 1946, on account of
additional damages, if any, alleged to have been sustained by said tribes by reason
of the taking of the'said lands and rights in the said Fort Berthold Indian Reser-
vation on account of any treaty obligation of the Government or any intangible
cost of reestablishment or relocation, for which the said tribes are not compensated

by the said $5,105,625.
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